Members:

George Quigley, Chairman Ed Donaldson, Vice-Chair Horace Humphrey Melree Hubbard Tart Joseph Dykes



Alternates: Martin J. Locklear Randy Newsome William Lockett Tally Carrie Tyson-Autry Yvette Carson

Cumberland County Board of Adjustment

130 Gillespie Street Fayetteville, NC 28301 (910) 678-7603

> MINUTES JUNE 21, 2012 7:00 P.M.

Members Present

George Quigley, Chairman Ed Donaldson Horace Humphrey Melree Hubbard Tart Joseph Dykes Carrie Autry-Tyson (non-voting) **Absent Members**

None

Staff/Others Present

Patricia Speicher Pier Varner Melodie Robinson Angela Perrier

Chair Quigley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in Public Hearing Room # 3 of the Historic Courthouse.

1. ROLL CALL

Mrs. Varner called the roll and stated a quorum was present.

- 2. CHAIR QUIGLEY SWORE IN THE STAFF
- 3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

There were none.

4. APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 16, 2012 AND MAY 17, 2012 MINUTES

A motion was made by Mr. Donaldson and seconded by Mrs. Tart to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion passed unanimously.

5. PUBLIC HEARING WITHDRAWAL

MRS. VARNER: Stated that Case P12-05-C has been withdrawn.

A motion was made by Mrs. Tart and seconded by Mr. Humphrey to withdraw Case P12-05-C. The motion passed unanimously.

6. PUBLIC HEARING DEFERRAL

MRS. VARNER: Stated that Case P12-08-C is deferred until the July 10, 2012 Board of Adjustment Special meeting.

A motion was made by Mr. Donaldson and seconded by Mr. Humphrey to defer Case P12-08-C until the July 10, 2012 Board of Adjustment Special meeting. The motion passed unanimously.

7. ABSTENTIONS BY BOARD MEMBERS

There were none.

8. BOARD MEMBER DISCLOSURES

There were none.

9. POLICY STATEMENTS REGARDING APPEAL PROCESS

Mrs. Varner read the Board's policy regarding the appeal process to the audience.

10. PUBLIC HEARING(S)

Opened Public Hearing

A. P12-07-C: CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE FROM THE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1104, DISTRICT DIMENSIONAL PROVISIONS, TO ALLOW A FRONT YARD SETBACK OF 20 FEET WHERE 30 FEET IS REQUIRED FOR A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING IN A R15 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT ON 0.69+/- ACRE, LOCATED AT 1220 PONY DRIVE (SR 3920); SUBMITTED AND OWNED BY TYRUS L. AND PAIGE W. ROSS.

MRS. VARNER: Presented the zoning, land use and photos of the site to the Board.

MR. DONALDSON: Please show the pictures of the front of the house.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Is there a driveway leading to the house?

MRS. VARNER: The applicant would be the best one to answer that question.

MR. DONALDSON: The plot shows the front of the house facing Pony Drive, but there is a track of land that cuts off into the front of that, so they really are not on Pony Drive, are they?

MS. SPEICHER: Mr. Donaldson, you are correct. They do own that small strip of property on Pony Drive and the driveway does access across there to the house.

MR. DONALDSON: So they own that and the front of the house is actually facing Pony Drive?

MS. SPEICHER: Yes sir, and under the zoning ordinance, it is actually the side yard.

MR. DONALDSON: But it says here the side setback is ten feet.

MS. SPEICHER: Yes sir, it is. Technically the zoning ordinance calls the front yard the street side of the property.

MR. DONALDSON: Why wouldn't the street side be where the front of the house is on Pony Drive?

MS. SPEICHER: Because it is a separate lot and because both lots were created and platted long before the zoning or subdivision ordinance was created.

MR. DONALDSON: All they would have to do is deed it to themselves into one piece of property and it would be facing Pony Drive, right?

MS. SPEICHER: No sir, because the zoning ordinance requires all corner lots to also meet a front yard setback from each lot.

MR. DONALDSON: So they consider this a corner lot?

MS. SPEICHER: No sir, we consider the front yard on Emu Drive not in the side yard on Pony Drive because it is two separate legal non-conforming lots...well, one of them is a legal non-conforming existing lot. The reason we advised them to apply for a variance is because of the fact that the county also says every corner lot has to meet a front yard setback from both streets.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> Basically, it is a legal use, non-conforming.

MS. SPEICHER: Yes.

MR. HUMPHREY: That little stretch of property you have just shown, does the applicant own that property?

MR. DONALDSON: That is what I was saying; all they would have to do is perk that lot.

MRS. VARNER: Even if they combine it as Patti said, they would have to meet two fronts.

MR. HUMPHREY: That wouldn't solve the situation.

MRS. VARNER: No, it would be the same.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Swore in Tyrus L. Ross and Paige W. Ross.

MRS. ROSS: Stated her name as Paige Ross living at 1220 Pony Drive in Cypress Lakes.

MR. ROSS: Stated his name as Tyrus Ross with the same address.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> Your interest in this case is that you are the owners of the subject property?

MRS. ROSS: That is correct. We have a corner lot and we had a builder come to our home and we are a growing family in a two bedroom home. When our builder came out, we realized with the corner lot we were subject to this variance issue. What we are asking is to allow a master bedroom to be built onto the end of our home. We have never used the driveway on Emu Drive; we all have used Pony Drive. We are asking for a ten foot variance in order to build, it is our side yard and we did some preparation for this. We got the signatures of all the neighbors on the street and a couple of the neighbors are here tonight.

MR. ROSS: I brought some pictures, but you have them already up. Basically, where we want to add the addition, the back of our yard is sloped. [pointing to the presentation as he describes the section of the house he wants to build onto] We want to maintain the architectural integrity of the house and the aesthetics.

MRS. ROSS: The trees line the back row so our neighbors won't see anything.

MR. ROSS: The landscape will not be changed by this addition; it will face us on Emu Drive.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> Do you have a driveway leading into the property?

MR. ROSS: Yes, it is on Pony Drive.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> Accepted sheet 1 as Exhibit 1 and sheet 2 as Exhibit 2.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> Does the board have any questions for Mr. & Mrs. Ross? Did you have anything else that you wanted to introduce?

MRS. ROSS: I think the pictures were all, along with the neighbors' approval.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> In one of the pictures, it shows a screen of trees that blocks the view from Emu Drive.

MRS. ROSS: Actually, our neighbors are in favor of it because it will actually increase our property value.

MR. ROSS: Yes, that screen of trees is off of Emu Drive; that will remain there.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> You are going to keep those trees in the landscape. Thank you very much.

Public Hearing Closed

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> The house is facing the wrong direction in order to satisfy the County Zoning Ordinance.

MR. HUMPHREY: With the additional land they have and with the signatures from the neighbors saying it is okay with them, I certainly am in favor of it.

MRS. TART: Mr. Chairman, I move that we grant the variance as requested in Case P12-07-C based on the following findings of fact:

1. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that, there are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography that are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same district. This finding is based on the following **CONDITIONS:**

The location of the existing building fronts on Pony Drive but that is actually a side yard, the driveway is located on the side yard, the location of the septic system in the rear yard that doesn't leave enough space to build, and the applicant presented evidence about the slope of the property.

2. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that granting the variance requested will not confer upon the applicant any special privileges that are denied to other residents in the district in which the property is located. This finding is based on the following **CONDITIONS:**

There are no special privileges conferred upon the applicant, the board has not denied this privilege to others in the area. Subject property created and structure built prior to any regulations being in place.

3. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that the literal interpretation of the provisions of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other residents of the district in which the property is located. This finding is based on the following **CONDITIONS:**

The way the house is positioned on the property, the applicant cannot change it. Specifying the street side of the property as the front yard would be unfair and cause an undue hardship since it is actually the side yard of the house.

4. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that, if granted, the requested variance will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of this Ordinance and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or to

the general welfare. This finding is based on all of the **CONDITIONS** listed above, as well as the following:

There is no one in the neighborhood opposing this case; by evidence presented, all neighbors were in favor. The existing berm and stand of trees will remain undisturbed, essentially there will be no change from the view outside the property and the public safety will not be compromised.

5. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that the special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant. This finding is based on all of the **CONDITIONS** listed above as well as the following:

The lot was created and the structure built prior to any regulations being adopted.

6. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that the variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the legal use of the land, building or structure. This finding is based on the following **CONDITIONS**:

The minimum variance the applicant needs is ten foot, which will make practical, and residential is a legal use of the subject property with no effect on the adjacent properties.

7. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that the variance is not a request to permit a use of land, building or structure which is not permitted by right or by special exception in the district involved and will not constitute any change in district boundaries. This finding is based on the following **CONDITIONS**:

There are no changes in district boundaries, the residential use is a legal use of the property.

8. It is the Board's **CONCLUSION** that the existence of a nonconforming use of neighboring land, buildings or structures in the same district or of permitted or nonconforming uses in other districts does not constitute a reason for approval of this requested variance. This finding is based on the following CONDITIONS:

The decision of the board was not based in any other nonconforming use.

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, **IT IS ORDERED** that the application for a **VARIANCE** be **GRANTED** subject to the following conditions:

- 1. All information contained in the application;
- 2. All development shall be in accordance with the site plan as submitted unless otherwise specified below;
- 3. All other provisions of the County Zoning Ordinance shall be complied with;
- 4. All relevant Federal, State, and local regulations are complied with;
- 5. The applicant is responsible for obtaining all required permits prior to proceeding with any development on that lot.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do I have a motion?

MRS. TART: I make a motion to grant the variance.

MR. DONALDSON: I second the motion.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> All in favor of granting the variance please signify by saying aye.

	IN FAVOR	OPPOSED
QUIGLEY	YES	NONE
DONALDSON	YES	
TART	YES	
HUMPHREY	YES	
DYKES	YES	

The motion passed unanimously.

B. P12-06-C: CONSIDERATION OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A DAY CARE FACILITY IN AN RR RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT ON 13.66 +/-ACRES, LOCATED AT 6111 MCDONALD ROAD (SR 1121), SUBMITTED BY BOBBY L. MCKOY ON BEHALF OF NEW VISION CHRISTIAN CHURCH INC., (OWNER) AND DORA MCKOY.

MRS. VARNER: Presented the zoning, land use and photos of the site to the Board.

MR. DONALDSON: Exactly where is that on 301?

MS. SPEICHER: It is between Parkton Road and 301 and two streets down from the residential areas where all the little dirt streets are.

MR. DONALDSON: It is down below where I-95 and 301 join, right before you get out of the county?

MS. SPEICHER: Yes.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> Does anyone have questions for staff?

MR. DONALDSON: Do I understand this right? The church is there, they are just going to modify the inside of the church for the day care? Is the church going away? Is it going to be a dual purpose building?

MRS. VARNER: Yes, it will be for the day care and the church.

MS. SPEICHER: This is also located in the Hope Mills Municipal Influence Area and being treated as an urban area even though the pictures do look full. We have had numerous rezoning and are expecting a large subdivision any day up the road from this church. I'm not trying to sway the board one way or the other. It is kind of misleading, on the aerial photos there are farmlands, but I just want you to understand this is where we are getting our cases for zoning and subdivision.

MRS. TART: Are they modifying the interior of the structure to meet these needs or are they using educational facilities? Does the state control any of that?

MS. SPEICHER: The applicants are here. Yes, the state does control the structures for the child care. As far as the planning and renovations, if there are any, the applicants are here to answer.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Dora McKoy & Bobby KcKoy chose to affirm instead of swear.

MR. MCKOY: My name is Bobby McKoy and I am the pastor of New Vision Christian Church and the address is 6111 McDonald Road.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Your interest in this is you are parishioners, or you own the property?

MR. MCKOY: Yes, we own the property. We know we can open up for four hours without approval, but we are trying to get eight hours. We have numerous kids in our facilities and there are low income mothers trying to make it. What we are trying to do is to provide for those low income people to get our service not only for those but also for the neighborhood. We already have a day care and we are trying to move it out of our home and to get it into a facility at the church. We know that we have to abide by state code and we are willing to do that. This is why we are here. We want to be able to help the members of our church and also to help the neighborhood.

MR. HUMPHREY: You already have a day care now in your home?

MR. MCKOY: Yes, and I am trying to get it out. There is not that much traffic on that road and we have already been approved for the four hours by the state. Some of these mothers work at Smithfield and have to be at work early. We have had to turn down some because at our home we cannot accept any more than eight. We want to expand to twenty-five just before and after. We have the age group 4-12 that we're dealing with. We are picking them up from

school. When the parents drop them off we bring them to school and bring them back and the parents pick them up at the church.

MRS. VARNER: For the record, Mr. Humphrey, what he means is he has a day care already and is running it as a home occupation that allows up to eight kids.

MR. HUMPHREY: I'm just concerned that you all would have some daycare experience. The state codes and county codes would apply, right?

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> If the building is in the church.

MR. DONALDSON: So you are only going to do before school care and after school care, nothing during the middle of the day? How about when there are school holidays?

MR. MCKOY: On holidays, we are closed, but if the teachers have a work day and they need our help, we will assist them.

MR. HUMPHREY: It sounds like you are trying to be an asset to the community and to the kids.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Swore in Willie Chason.

MR. CHASON: My name is Willie Chason and I live at 5965 McDonald Road, Parkton, NC 28371. This is six houses west from the subject property we talked about here tonight. I'm opposed to this day care for a couple of reasons. I have nothing against the church, it is a nice church, and they take care of it. Rev McKoy says he lives on McDonald Road, if he lives on McDonald Road; he's the only one that goes to this church. All these people live away from this neighborhood. My big concern is the traffic. I don't know how many of you have ever been there and know this intersection, but 1000 yards from where they are going to be exiting on 301 is a dangerous intersection and I've witnessed several deaths there. I have to wait in line and you [Mr. McKoy] made mention that traffic isn't bad, yes it is bad. I have to cross the road to check my mailbox. I come in everyday on that road. We think this will increase traffic; that is my big problem. My other problem is if we start this; he's got 13+ acres to work with and he is going to want to build a wing to the house and other things. It is going to be a domino effect. In his back yard which is my back yard is hundreds of acres of farmland. If he gets this passed, he's going to want to build back there and it's going to be low income housing in my backyard. I live next door to a day care now. Forty-seven feet from my patio I have to watch kids come and go, they don't bother me, but I have to watch them if I'm out. That is my problem; the traffic is the biggest thing. Most of these people that go to this church, they don't live in this neighborhood. I think they can build a day care in their own neighborhood and leave mine alone. I bought my house there because it is residential, now across from the church they've got a bus lot and it is in my way and it is dangerous.

MR. DONALDSON: You said you live in the sixth house up the road? [pointing to the presentation] You said the land behind you and I'm looking at a field behind you on the map, does he own that land?

MR. CHASON: No, sir, it is for sale, it has a "for sale" sign on it.

MR. DONALDSON: It will probably be developed the way the county is growing down there.

MR. CHASON: It's just the traffic and it is going to increase. He's got 13+ acres to work on and he goes by the state regulations for the day care. Once it grows to 50 or 60 cars in the daytime; I have to line up now to get out onto 301.

MR. DONALDSON: You said it was a bus parking lot across the street from the church?

MR. CHASON: Across the street. He has coaches that he takes groups out with and he has four or five buses.

MR. DONALDSON: Are you talking about where the cursor is pointed [on the presentation], the white area across the street?

MR. CHASON: It is directly across the street on McDonald Road, about 1000 yards from the intersection of 301.

MS. SPEICHER: That is a tour bus company.

MR. CHASON: Yes, a tour bus company, it is a business, but not the church's.

MR. DONALDSON: That is a separate enterprise.

MR. CHASON: This is not pure fact, but in talking to my neighbors a lot of them that live on this road between me and the church is about four places that are rentals and they don't care to come down here to speak. Two or three of them are elderly and unable to drive. They were against it and I'm speaking for them. As we were talking, we discussed this domino effect and what could happen. This week a home between my home and the church was for sale and bought. Rumor has it that this church has bought the house. This is the fact I'm trying to make about the domino effect coming down the street to my house. I don't have facts to that but I think I am right here.

MR. MCKOY: I don't know where my neighbor and my friend got his information. He received the wrong information. The only thing we own in there is the fourteen acres and the church. I have not bought land or any house. Why would I buy a house? I would if the Lord blessed me because I want to be able to house those less fortunate than we are. Also, he [Mr. Chason] knows that my property is well kept. We make sure that everything is up to par. Right now we can only open up four hours according to state law, but we want to keep these mothers working. Mr. Chason doesn't know who attends my church, he has never been there. He has

never been inside the church. How can he address that information to say he knows these members? I don't think anyone on that road has attended this church, maybe one or two for revival, but other than just attending Sunday school or morning service, I have not seen them. We are just trying to do something to help the neighborhood. We pick up kids over on Roslin Farm Road and we transport them to Sandhill Road. We are trying to get it close by. I've been traveling that road for five years and I never had an accident and no one from the church has ever had an accident. The traffic on that road is very limited and the same thing in that parking lot and when you come off of 301 the traffic is limited. We are trying to do something to help the neighborhood and the people in the church. I can understand Mr. Chason having his issues, but I don't think it would be any danger. We are just asking for four more hours so we can be legitimate.

MR. DONALDSON: What's the average attendance at your church every Sunday?

MR. MCKOY: Between eighty and one hundred and twenty.

MR. DONALDSON: How many cars, is the parking lot full?

MR. MCKOY: We have van service and we pick up and some ride in cars. Then we have plenty of parking spaces other than the parking lot.

MR. DONALDSON: I understand, I was just wondering what the traffic was like on Sunday.

MRS. TART: I noticed on the application it says that it is owned by New Vision Christian Church Incorporated. Do you have an administrative board or do you and your wife make the decisions? How is the property deeded?

MR. MCKOY: The property is deeded under New Vision Christian Church Incorporated.

MRS. TART: Who are the officers of that corporation?

MR. MCKOY: My wife and I, a deacon; there are about four people on the board. When it comes down to making important decisions, the board would have to come before me.

Public Hearing Closed

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Is there any discussion?

MR. DONALDSON: I want to make a comment and this is for Mr. Chason's information also. This has become almost routine for us with churches doing day care. The truth of the matter is; if they wanted to grow a mega-church out there, there is no zoning against it. There is a church there and they can bust it ten times larger and they would not even have to come in here and ask. All they would need to do is to get a building permit. We wouldn't have anything to say about it and the staff wouldn't have anything to say about it. The truth of the matter is, almost all churches now, it doesn't matter if you are at Highland Presbyterian or Manna Church; all of

them are schools/day care facilities/child care facilities. It has become part of, for lack of a better word, their business. You [Mrs. Tart] had a question about the incorporation, which is a new phenomenon, but they all incorporate now.

MRS. TART: I understand that.

MR. DONALDSON: It is for legal protection, is basically the reason why they do that. There are other reasons too, but that is the primary reason. I know that Mr. Chason is concerned about it like any other person would be seeing this coming in there. The reason why I asked the question about the traffic on Sunday is if you are talking thirty or forty cars on Sunday, you are not talking about that many cars during the day for twenty-five kids if they are going to pick up in vans and bring them in and out unless the parents are dropping them off there. I think we have always been consistent. We have allowed this particularly in these areas. The other thing too is that we see it, the county is growing in all areas and as they grow they need these day care facilities. It is just a fact of life. Moms don't stay at home anymore, most families are single parent homes now and they've got to have some day care. So they are providing a service and for those reasons and I think they have adequately proved their case, I don't see any reason why we could deny it. I move to grant the special use permit.

MR. HUMPHREY: I wanted to add a comment to the gentleman who is in opposition who talked about what would happen in the future. He would have the same right to come and oppose that notion of any board or any action that went on in the future. He is not being denied anything. I second the motion.

MR. DONALDSON: We are not unsympathetic to you Mr. Chason, but there are certain legal requirements and we have to go by the rules.

MR. CHASON: I bet you wouldn't want one next to your house, would you?

MR. DONALDSON: I actually have Manna and Berean Baptist next to me.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: We've got a motion standing and we need to come up with the case facts.

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located according to the plan submitted and recommended;

There is no evidence, only allegations it would increase traffic, but there is no evidence before the board that shows it would be an increased danger or safety to the members of the community in that area. The traffic will only minimally increase during that period of time.

2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications;

It is a 13.66+/- acre lot with a church existing there and there will not be any additional construction, just simply a matter of allowing them to use the church facility as it presently is to exercise a day care facility. Secondly, it is only going to be a before and after school from six in the morning when school starts and from the time school is out until six at night, and on those days when school is not in session during the weekdays because of teacher holidays, etc. They must also comply with other rules and regulations the state and county may impose.

3. The use will maintain or enhance the value of adjoining or abutting properties, or that the use is a public necessity; and

There has been no competent evidence presented that the day care facility will depreciate any of the value of any of the properties if it is developed as it is in the place it is located.

4. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as submitted and recommended, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and is in general conformity with Cumberland County's most recent Land Use Plan.

There is already some commercial use there. It has mixed use, residential, rural residential and a mixed use right across the street already. Granting this special use permit for a day care facility will not make it inconsistent with the surrounding use at this point.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> It has been motioned by Mr. Donaldson and seconded by Mr. Humphrey to grant the Special Use Permit. All in favor signify by saying aye.

	IN FAVOR	OPPOSED
QUIGLEY	YES	NONE
DONALDSON	YES	
HUMPHREY	YES	
TART	YES	
DYKES	YES	

Having heard all the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing, the Board finds that the application is complete, that the application complies with all of the applicable requirements of the Cumberland County Zoning Ordinance for the development proposed, and that therefore the application to make use of the property described within this case for the purpose indicated is hereby approved, subject to all applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the following conditions:

- 1. The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the application and site plan submitted to and approved by this Board, a copy of which is filed in the Cumberland County Planning & Inspections Office.
- 2. The applicant/property owner is the responsible party for the information contained within the site plan, including but not limited to the property boundaries, easement locations, and right-of-way boundaries.
- 3. The applicant/property owner is the responsible party to ensure compliance with all other related Federal, State, and local regulations, including but not limited to the NC Building Code.

MS. SPEICHER: Presented Chair Quigley with a certificate for his eight years of service on the Board of Adjustment. Today was his last day on the board.

11. RECOMMENDATION FOR NOMINATION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIR

MR. HUMPHREY: Motioned to recommend Mr. Donaldson as Chairman.

MR. DYKES: Seconded the motion.

MR. DONALDSON: Motioned to recommend Mrs. Tart as Chairman.

MRS. TART: Due to a personal situation, I would like to decline.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> All in favor of Mr. Donaldson for Chairman; signify by saying aye. The vote was unanimous.

		IN FAVOR	OPPOSED
H	UMPHREY	YES	NONE
D	YKES	YES	
Q	UIGLEY	YES	
T	ART	YES	
D	ONALDSON	YES	

MR. HUMPHREY: Motioned to recommend Mrs. Tart as Vice-Chair.

MR. DONALDSON: Seconded the motion.

<u>CHAIR QUIGLEY:</u> All in favor of Mrs. Tart for Vice-Chair; signify by saying aye. The vote was unanimous.

	IN FAVOR	OPPOSED
HUMPHREY	YES	NONE
DONALDSON	YES	
QUIGLEY	YES	
DYKES	YES	
TART	YES	

12. RECOMMENDATION FOR NOMINATIONS TO FILL VACANCIES

The board members discussed and voted unanimously to make the following recommendations to the Board of Commissioners:

Yvette Carson - first choice to fill the regular board member vacancy.

William Locket Tally - second choice to fill the regular board member vacancy if Yvette Carson declines.

Vickie Mullins - to fill alternate board member vacancy.

	IN FAVOR	OPPOSED
HUMPHREY	YES	NONE
DONALDSON	YES	
QUIGLEY	YES	
DYKES	YES	
TART	YES	

MS. SPEICHER: Mr. Dykes was reappointed by the Board of Commissioners to serve three additional years on the board.

13. DISCUSSION:

There was none.

14. UPDATE(S)

MS. SPEICHER: We have a new addition to the Zoning Ordinance. The County Commissioners, on Monday, adopted Riparian Buffer Standards zoning along certain creeks and the river. It is Cape Fear, Rock Fish, Little Rock Fish, Lower Little River, Little River and South River. It only affects properties greater than two acres, with existing lots two acres or less are exempt. We proposed in the adopted two zones you would have a 30 ft no disturbance buffer. Some of the creeks have an actual right of way line, like Rockfish Creek or Cape Fear River; no public right of way so there is a property line and the 30 ft would be measured from that property line out and not with the topography; it is a straight out type measurement. No tree cutting, every lot and development are entitled to at least one access point to the water depending on what they want it for whether a path or a boat ramp or whatever their plan is. Zone 2 is a 20 ft buffer with no buildings, no impervious surface. You can clear the trees and everything but it has to be grass or some other type of vegetation, it's just no buildings and no impervious surface. It will be in your books shortly. It's a total of 50 ft riparian buffer. We modeled that after the Neuse River Basin and the Tar Pamlico adopted by the state and the 30 ft no disturbance with the trees and vegetation, we took that straight from the existing stormwater rules that the County is already subject to anyway.

MR. DONALDSON: Is it the same thing about docks on the river?

MS. SPEICHER: No, we don't have authority like on the Cape Fear River; that is a public right-of-way. You would have to get with Army Corp of Engineers for that. Essentially, all we did was create an additional 20 ft, but we went with the NCDENR stormwater standard on the 30 ft because NCDENR will enforce that on the Erosion and Sanitation Control Plans and we don't have personnel to be everywhere to make sure nobody's taking down trees.

MRS. TART: What kind of policy does the city have?

MS. SPEICHER: The city does not have a riparian buffer. They spent years working on an UDO yet didn't have a riparian buffer. They said they have stormwater buffer, which we are all subject to by the state, but they essentially have a 30 ft buffer under stormwater.

15. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:35 pm; motioned by Mr. Quigley and seconded by Mr. Humphrey.